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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2018 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS (PARTIAL) 

HDP-2018-0549 
3301 Bowman Avenue 

 
PROPOSAL 

Alter a ca. 1940 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

Two-story, irregular-plan, side-gabled house with wood siding, 6:6 wood-sash windows, and 
a double-height entry porch with prominent Ionic columns. Other features include a 
Classical entryway with sidelights and a fanlight, dormers, and an exterior brick chimney.  
A 1½-story wing to the side and rear is clad in wood siding and features 6:6 wood-sash 
windows and a cross-gabled roof with dormers. A 1-story rear wing is a screened enclosure 
capped by a shed roof. 
 
PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 

The proposed project includes the following work: 
1) Restoration work on the original house, including restoration of original windows, 

doors, siding, and trim. Existing shutters will be replaced with working shutters 
with the same appearance. 

2) In-kind replacement of the existing standing-seam roof. 
3) Demolition of the two-story wing and chimney at the rear of the house. This is the 

only change proposed to the original house. 
4) Demolition of side and rear portions. 
5) Construction of one- and two-story additions to the side and rear. All additions will 

be clad in wood siding to match the original house and have a total footprint of 3,726 
square feet (including garage, carport, and patio). 

a. A two-story addition to the side of the house will be capped with a side-gabled 
roof with the same pitch as the original house roof. It will include 6:6 wood-
sash windows that are slightly smaller than the windows on the original 
house. The addition will be set back 15 feet from the front wall of the house, 
overlapping the side wall of the original house by 9 feet.  

b. A two-story addition behind the side addition will be capped with a cross-
gabled roof, with a ridge lower than the original house. It will include paired 
6:6 wood-sash windows; 6-light, 9-light, and 15-light fixed and casement 
wood-sash windows, and a 14-light fixed wood-sash window. 

c. A one-story rear addition will be capped with a flat roof. It will include a wide 
chimney at the east end, paired French doors on the middle portion, and a 
carport and garage at the southern end. The south garage wall will be clad in 
brick. 

6) Construction of a one-story guest house at the rear of the property. The building will 
be clad in hardiplank lap siding and capped by a standing-seam metal roof, with 
casement and fixed wood-sash windows and banks of French doors. The building 
footprint is 1,855 square feet. 

 
RESEARCH 
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Ronald and Tennie Byram built the house at a cost of $11,000. They lived there for at least 
46 years, from the time it was built until at least 1986. Ronald Byram founded R. W. Byram 
& Co., which produced oil reports and did other geological and petrochemical consulting. He 
was also involved in civic affairs, and served as the president of the Austin School Board, 
the president of the Chamber of Commerce, and a member of the State Board of Education. 
 
It is not known when the rear wing proposed for demolition was constructed. An aerial view 
from 1940 and a 1962 Sanborn Fire Insurance map show nearly the same building footprint 
for the addition, though the one-story “wraparound” and the rear dormers are not shown. 
This may or may not be the 1½-story wing that currently exists. Portions of the wing were 
reconstructed around 2005, according to building permits, which show that a rear addition 
was constructed at that time. The project architect has stated that the details and 
construction of the rear wing suggest a more recent construction date (ca. 1980s). 

    
1940 aerial view      1962 Sanborn map        2017 aerial view 
 
 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The building may meet the criteria for designation as a historic landmark. 
 
Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 

1) The building is more than 50 years old. 
2) The building retains a high degree of integrity. 
3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation 

(City of Austin Land Development Code, Section 25-2-352).  
a. Architecture. The building is a strong example of the Classical Revival style 

and may qualify under this criterion. 
b. Historical association. Ronald and Tennie Byram lived in the house from 

1940 until at least 1986. Ronald Byram was a successful businessman who 
served as the school board president in the late 1940s, during a time of 
substantial planning and expansion for school facilities; he also led major 
planning initiatives within the Chamber of Commerce around the same time. 
He may have contributed significantly to the history of the city, though he 
was not the only person who helped advance school expansion. The property’s 
association with his school board activities is not clear. The building was 
designed by Mee M. Smith, according to contemporary newspapers; no 
information was found about the architect. 

c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield 
significant data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 

d. Community value. The property does not appear to have a unique location, 
physical characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the 
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character, image, or cultural identity of the city, a neighborhood, or a 
particular group. 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 
landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 

 
Project Evaluation 
The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation are used to evaluate projects on 
historic and potentially historic buildings. Applicable standards include: 
 
2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of 

distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces, and spatial relationships that 
characterize a property will be avoided. 

5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 
• The project will retain and preserve the historic character of the property through 

restoration of original windows, doors, siding, and trim. 
• The project will remove an original 2-story wing at the rear of the house. This 

portion is not a prominent part of the house as seen from the primary right-of-way 
and will not have a significant adverse impact on the historic character. 

• The project will remove side and rear wings of the house. The construction date of 
these elements is not known. The overall footprint of the house remains much the 
same as it did in 1940, and the addition will be constructed on a similar footprint. 

 
The proposed project largely retains the historic character of the property and complies 
with these standards. 

 
9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 

materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new 
work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic 
materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of 
the property and its environment. 

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a 
manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic 
property and its environment would be unimpaired. 
The proposed additions will have a minimal impact on historic fabric and will preserve 
character-defining features of the house, including the multiple smaller portions 
supporting the prominent Classical Revival façade and massing. They will be 
differentiated from the existing house through subtle differences in window sizes and 
lack of shutters on the front façade, different window patterns on secondary elevations, 
and subordinate rooflines. The front picture-sized window on the side portion is not in 
keeping with the historic character of the original house. The additions could be 
removed without damaging the essential form and integrity of the historic property. 

 
The proposed additions will preserve the historic character of the property and comply 
with these standards. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Release the permit, with the recommendation that the symmetrical window pattern on the 
primary (north) façade of the side addition remain, without the central picture window as 
depicted in renderings. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 
Photos 

 
Primary (north) façade of 3301 Bowman Avenue. 
 

 
Side addition. 
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Occupancy History 
Completed by Historic Preservation Office staff 
October 2018 
 
1940-86 Ronald W. and Tennie Dell (or Tenna) Byram and children 
 The Byrams are listed as renters (1941-47), then owners (1949-ca. 1973), then 

renters (1985-86). Ronald worked as the president of R. W. Byram & Co. (1941-47 
and 1952-ca. 1973) and a geologist with no employer listed (1949, 1977, 1985-86). 
Tennie is listed as the vice president of R. W. Byram & Co. in 1962. 

 
 
Background Research 
Ronald Wesley Byram was born in 1902 in Harvey, Iowa, and moved to Falfurrias, Texas, 
with his family at age eight. He attended the University of Texas beginning in 1920, where 
he studied geology and was a founding member of the Cowboys, a men’s service 
organization. In 1921, he started R. W. Byram & Co. to earn tuition money. 
 
Byram was elected to the Austin School Board in 1944 on a platform of sanitary facilities, 
good teacher salaries, rapid building expansion, raising attendance, improving educational 
techniques, fiscal responsibility, and personal responsibility of school board members. He 
became president in 1946. During his tenure, the postwar Baby Boom led to substantial 
expansion of school facilities, and Byram championed ambitious 10- and 20-year building 
and improvement plans and related bond issues. By 1950, $10.56 million were needed for 
school construction and renovations, with $16.34 million needed over the next ten years. 
 
Byram was appointed to the State Board of Education in 1957, where he served until his 
death. He also served on the city Planning Commission around 1944 and in the Chamber of 
Commerce, including as vice president (1947) and president (1947-48). As vice president, he 
led the first Chamber of Commerce Planning Bureau to study a $15 million bond issue for 
public works and school facilities projects. In 1952, Byram led a Council-appointed citizens 
committee to develop a new zoning ordinance for Austin; however, the City did not have a 
planning engineer to staff the committee, and it is not clear if the ordinance was completed. 
 
Byram was active in the leadership of charitable and religious organizations, including St. 
David’s Hospital (chairman of the building committee during construction of the new 
hospital), St. David’s Episcopal Church, and St. Andrew’s Episcopal School (chairman of the 
board of trustees). He kept a hobby farm at Waters Park (near the intersection of Parmer 
Lane and MoPac), where he raised cows. 
 
Ronald Byram died in 1968 in Austin. 
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“Bolton, Bryam [sic], Moos Elected Trustees by Huge Margins,” The Austin American 4/2/1944. 
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“Talk Points Up School Bond Need,” The Austin Statesman 5/2/1946. 
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“Byram Started in One Depression, Expanded His Business in Another,” The Austin Statesman 
11/29/1947. 
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“45-Cent School Tax Hike Needed for ‘Efficient Job’,” The Austin Statesman 7/7/1948. 
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“State Board Gives Byram Bolton Seat,” The Austin Statesman 1/7/1957. 
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“Services Thursday for Ronald Byram,” The Austin Statesman 9/25/1968. 
 
 
Tennie Dell Byram (nee Boykin) was born around 1909 in Mart, Texas, near Waco. Her 
father worked as a railroad brakeman. She attended the University of Texas for one year, 
then married Ronald Byram by 1931. The couple had one child. The Byrams moved from 
2830 Shoal Crest Avenue to the new house at 3301 Bowman Avenue by 1941. Tennie 
Byram died in 2003 in Austin. 
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“48 Get Okeh for Building / $11,000 Residence Planned by Byrams,” The Austin American 2/18/1940. 
 
 
Ronald Byram founded R. W. Byram & Co. in 1921, when he was a student at the 
University of Texas. 
Initially distributed state oil records to oil companies 
1933—started Texas State House Reporter with two newsmen from International News 
Service: “a publication with wide interest among oil men” that provided updates on the 
activities of the Texas Railroad Commission, the State Legislature, the Governor, Attorney 
General, and others whose work affects the oil and gas industry. 
oil reports/oil reporter at 104 E. 13th (1941), 202 W. 10th (1944-45), 302 E. 12th (1947), 302 E. 
12th (1952-_____) 
By 1957, the company had 30 employees and about 1,400 clients. 
“One of the largest of its kind in the Southwest” 
“consulting geologists, publishers of various specialized petroleum publications” (1962) 
1968: consulting, reporting, and statistical operations; branch offices in Baton Rouge and 
Santa Fe 
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“State House Reporter Is News Report,” The Austin American 10/9/1955. 
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ABOUT, R. W. Byram & Co., http://rwbyram.com/about/, accessed 10/15/2018. 
 

http://rwbyram.com/about/
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PRODUCT CATALOG, R. W. Byram & Co., http://rwbyram.com/producttype/, accessed 10/15/2018. 
 
 
Building Permits 

http://rwbyram.com/producttype/
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Building permit issued to Mr. and Mrs. R. W. Byram for a 2-story wood-frame residence with 
attached garage, 2/12/1940. 
 

 
Building permit issued to R. W. Byram for a wood-frame greenhouse valued at $70, 8/22/1974. The 
permit also includes a bedroom and bathroom remodel valued at $2,000, 8/21/1974. 
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Building permit issued for greenhouse, 8/22/1974. 
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Sewer permit issued to W. O Harper for R. W. Byram (owner), 6/8/1944. 


